
 1 

JAIL NEEDS SUBCOMMITTTEE 

MEETING-5th Floor-Conference Room 

DECEMBER 29, 2025 – 2:00 PM 

MINUTES 

 

Call to Order: 

Sheriff Saaranen called the meeting to order at 2:08 p.m. 

 

Roll Call/Present:   

 

Sheriff Josh Saaranen, Captain Travis Dessellier, Faith Morrison, Justin LaCasse. 

By Microsoft Teams:  Valorie Troesch, Jennifer Kelly, and Mike Hamilton. 

Visitors: Corrections Officer Dale Lavigne, Alex Radke (IT) 

 

Approval of Agenda/Additions: 

 

Motion was made by Faith Morrison and seconded by Mike Hamilton to approve the agenda as 

presented. 

 

The Motion carried by a voice vote.  Ayes 4, Nays 0. 

The minutes of the December 22, 2025 meeting will be submitted for approval at the next 

meeting. 

Discussion: 

The Sheriff introduced Dale Lavigne, Houghton Sheriff Department Corrections Officer.   

 

Faith Morrison discussed helping the public know why a jail is needed.  Inmates don’t need a 

jail, the county does.  It’s about safety of the jail.  The jail is unable to separate inmates at this 

time.  People have asked why we cannot add on to the current jail. 

 

Dale Lavigne stated that would open up a can of worms.  Once a major renovation is proposed, 

the entire facility may have to be brought up to code. 

 



 2 

Mike Hamilton stated everything has to be updated when a major change is made.  Everything 

was grandfathered in.  Discussed the section in the consultant’s master plan about fixing up 

sections of the jail. 

 

Dale Lavigne stated the jail is not just about the inmates.  It is about the safety of the officers 

dealing with inmates, especially those with mental health issues.  They want everyone to be safe.  

It was asked how often there are mental health inmates.  ACTION: Sheriff will get the 

numbers.  He discussed placement of an inmate in an appropriate facility taking between 2 

weeks and 11 months; the jail would typically have one or two waiting for mental health 

placement.  They recently had 1 person for 2 years.  There are 8 people waiting for a bed 

downstate.  Sheriff asked Dale Lavigne to compare working for Ontonagon compared to 

Houghton.  She stated there are a lot more inmates in Houghton County and the danger is much 

higher.  They could put 4 people in a cell in Ontonagon. 

 

Mike Hamilton stated the importance of informing the public of the danger in the jail. 

 

Valorie Troesch stated the information about the danger of the jail would best come from the 

Sheriff as it will carry more weight. 

 

Faith Morrison discussed inmates’ medical appointments.  Dale Lavigne stated they bring the 

inmates locally or sometimes go to Marquette for surgery.  That takes staff time. 

 

Faith Morrison asked if the booking area can be made safer.  Dale Lavigne stated it is too small; 

removing walls is not an option due to the grandfathering problem and bringing things up to 

code. 

 

Valorie Troesch stated there was not room to do that in the 2018 jail plan. 

 

Sheriff stated that he would rather fight with someone in open areas where officers can come to 

aid, not in tight areas.  They sometimes have weekly fights, and sometimes daily. Knock-down, 

drag-out fights. The public is not made aware of the fighting. 

 

Faith Morrison stated people claim that we do not have much crime in Houghton County. 

 

Sheriff noted that we used to have a police blotter column in the paper.  Sheriff is researching a 

daily blotter tab in the sheriff’s app, for a field service deputy that would respond daily. 

ACTION: Sherrif will look into adding a police blotter for his app. 

 

Sheriff wants the jail to be as safe as possible and to have the officers in a secure area. 

 

Mike Hamilton said a 5-minute spiel on the radio would be good. 



 3 

 

Faith Morrison discussed how Houghton City Manager Eric Waara is on the radio weekly for the 

City of Houghton and discussed things happening in the City of Houghton.  Maybe they could do 

that for the Sheriff and discuss the jail. ACTION: Morrison/Sheriff will look into something 

like this for the county. 

 

Valorie Troesch discussed the risks and dangers, let people know of doomsday incidents and 

things that happen in the jail and the repercussions.  We need to sell the jail to the voters, and 

people need to know the things that happen in the jail. 

 

Faith Morrison asked how many inmates in the jail are female.  Dale Lavigne stated there are 7 

and we have only 2 cells.  Not all cells are suitable for female inmates.  She discussed 

overcrowding. 

 

Travis Desallier:  There is a shower in each cell, except for 1 cell (just how they were built; one 

was converted from an office).  There are two 6-man cells.  They must move inmates around so 

one person can shower.  The inmates are responsible to clean the cells 3 times per week. Having 

so many internal transfers is also unsafe. 

 

Sheriff stated the nurse comes to the facility and meets with inmates downstairs.  There is always 

an officer with the inmate. They have from zero to 6 nurse visits in a day. 

 

Valorie Troesch discussed the difference in transportation for inmates between the current jail 

and a potential new jail.  Dale Lavigne: Wheelchairs and inmates needing crutches is 

hard/impossible now and becomes a liability. Would be fixed in a new facility. Less overall 

disruption with movements in a new facility.  She noted that when she is downstairs at the 

nurse’s office with an inmate she is out of hearing/being heard range of the other officers.  This is 

not safe. 

 

Travis Dessellier discussed scenarios he prepared to give the public an idea of how the jail 

processes are carried out in the current building.  He went through the booking scenario. 

ACTION: Append the three scenarios to these minutes. 

 

Discussion continued.  Travis Dessellier:  If an inmate needs a wheelchair or cannot do steps, it’s 

an issue.  Sometimes must ask neighboring county to assist and lodge the inmate.  Sally port is 

bad and cannot have 2 officers working together in that space.  Sheriff stated that they cannot 

make it bigger and install an elevator.  He stated general maintenance has been top notch over the 

past for painting and fixing things.  The roof is the biggest issue right now-infrastructure 

problem.  Previously holes were put into the roof for a critical HVAC problem. Now there are 

leaks; the holes were a mistake, but there was a lawsuit filed citing improper air circulation and it 

had to be addressed immediately.  Another issue is there should not be any firearms in the 

booking area.  The firearms should be locked up. For the road officers to circulate in the current 

jail it is a challenge to follow the firearms rules and still get to where you need to be.  Third issue 

is the inmates should be read their Miranda rights in the interview room, and they should be 

recorded and maintain they know their rights. All these activities have to take place in the small 

and busy space we have.  Faith Morrison stated it’s legally important that the officers do this at 



 4 

the right time and make note of it, and if the new jail is designed better, everything would be 

better. 

 

Sheriff stated sometimes there are 6-7 officers in a small space.  Dale Lavigne stated an inmate 

can become aggressive seeing that many officers, so the Sheriff will sometimes ask some to 

leave the area. 

 

Faith Morrison stated we are improvising in the spaces instead of having dedicated spaces for the 

work.  We need to know the square feet of space.  It is in the consultants’ report.  

 

Alex Radke noted that there is no second egress from the basement; that is where the emergency 

manager’s office is. The only way out is past the booking area; not safe. 

 

Dale Lavigne stated the types of drugs being smuggled in these days can be deadly. 

 

Sheriff stated a new facility body scanner is needed and there is grant funding available. 

 

Travis stated he tries to have 2 officers present for a strip search which is currently done in the 

laundry room; this is the only available space. 

 

Dale Lavigne stated the hallway is narrow if there are bodies rolling around. 

 

Justin LaCasse showed everyone a slide presentation on the requirements, functional and 

physical things that needs to exist.  He can show an analysis in what is done now, and how things 

could be done at a property facility.  He could try to use the scenarios and put them in these 

categories.  He stated there would be one way to do things in the current jail.  

 

Faith Morrison suggested identifying the right set of scenarios to use to show the public on 

booking, transporting inmates from jail to the courts.   

 

Valorie Troesh discussed the critical spaces vs. the number of beds.  The sally port is a big issue, 

and we cannot use the one we have now. 

 

ACTION: Sheriff will work on a list of spaces that we currently have vs. what we should 

have. 

 

ACTION: Dessallier will prepare additional scenarios that illustrate the way the current 

building is not suited to what officers/staff need to do in the jail. 

 

Faith Morrison suggested using Justin LaCosse’s presentation to assist with the design. 

 

Valorie Troesch suggested not to focus on cells and the number of beds, but to focus on the 

safety and needed spaces. 

 

Faith Morrison discussed that the report had construction costs for a 60, 70 or 80 bed facility. 

Classification requirement mean a larger number of spaces is needed. Not looking to make it nice 



 5 

for the inmates but need the outside working space.  Sheriff discussed the cost for additional 

spaces.  

 

Sheriff stated that in terms of size, we don’t want it to fill up as soon as we build it. 

 

Faith Morrison stated we need to know the implications before the Board deals with the design. 

 

Sheriff and Justin LaCosse will go over to the Sheriff Department to discuss the scenarios. 

 

Faith Morrison stated we do not want the spaces too small.  Task is to look at the plan for spaces, 

and what may be too much space.  There are no courtrooms in the tentative floor plans from the 

consultants.  She will try to figure out the square footages. 

 

Mike Hamilton asked can we have a physical list of the stuff we have issues with. What did the 

inspectors say? 

 

Sheriff said it’s brief, one page.  Haven’t had to do any corrective action other than “shots across 

the bow.” MDOC is hesitant to speak too much in public. 

 

ACTION: LaCasse will take the three scenarios and put them into his system to discuss at 

the next meeting. 

 

ACTION: Morrison will find the square footages of current/proposed jail in the report. 

 

ACTION: Sheriff will see if someone from MDOC can attend our next meeting by Teams. 

 

 

ACTION:  Report to the Jail Committee on the Subcommittee progress (they meet 1/5/26): 

1. Developing scenarios, i.e. what are the kinds of things that go on in the jail 

building?  Including, for example, arrests, interviews, chain of evidence, following the 

law in the treatment of those detained, public services. 

2. Noting the deficiencies in the current jail building that affect these processes and how 

they should be (emphasizing officer/visitor/inmate safety, legal rights, best practices). 

3. Breaking the scenarios down into the steps, spaces, and staff/others that are involved. 

4. For each structural unit (room), determining activities that happen and how big they 

need to be for Houghton County 

5. Examine consultants’ report for suggested sizes and costs issues to better understand; 

plan to map to the above. 

 

Next meeting date and time: 

 

The Committee agreed to meet next on January 12, 2026 at 2:00 p.m. in the 5th floor conference 

room, with Teams. 

   

Public Comments 

 



 6 

None. 

 

Adjournment: 

Motion was made by Valorie Troesch and seconded by Faith Morrison to adjourn the meeting. 

The Motion carried by a voice vote.  Ayes 4, Nays 0.  Meeting adjourned at 4:10pm. 

 



 7 

 



 8 

 



 9 



 10 



 11 

_______________________________________________________ 
JOSH SAARANEN 
Sheriff 
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________________________ 
JENNIFER KELLY 
COUNTY CLERK/REGISTER OF DEEDS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED:___________________ 
JK 


